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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The Patowmack Canal at the Great Falls of the Potomac in Virginia is a skirting canal
approximately 3/4 of a mile long and containing five locks, a large holding basin, two
- guard gates, a2 wing dam, and several other related features. It was constructed by
‘the Patowmack Canal Company between 1785 and 1802 to provide passage around the Great
Falls of the Potomac.

The canal consisted of: a large wing dam at its upper terminus, an upper guard gate,
the canal bed, a large holding basin, a lower guard gate, the five locks including
their attendant gates, and a stone jetty at its 1ower terminus. In addition, the
town of Matildaville was to be constructed as an’ accompanylng trade center and
headquarters for the Patowmack Company.

Wing Dam (canal 1n1et) e -

At the upper terminus of the canal, a wing dam extended into the river approximately
1,200 feet. 1Its purpose was to channel water into the canal, especially at times of
1ow water. Remnants of this. structure indicate it was constructed of stones, possibly
in wooden cribs, and its upper elevation would have been the operating level of the
canal. Thus, surplus water simply flowed over the top of the dam. This structure is
located 1,600 feet above the Great Falls Park Visitors Center.

Upper._ Splllway

Below the wing dam in the river side of the canal wall, there was a low masonry dam
constructed in the bed of an existing stream channel. Its upper elevation was again
the working level of the canal and it allowed excess water to spill over the dam and
return to the river. This structure is only barely visible and is located 1,300 feet
above the Great Falls Park Visitors Center.

Upper Guard Gate

Immediately below the upper spillway was the upper guard gate. This controlled the
entrance of water into the entire canal system below this point. Evidence indicates
that the gates were of the swing or mitre type. On the berm bank a heavy stone wall
20 feet thick extends nearly 40 feet into the berm wall to resist flood waters. On
the river side, below the guard gate, the canal walls are about 20 feet thick and
constructed of large stones, dry laid with a slight batter. 1In places these walls,
extending 10 feet from the canal bed, rise from bedrock, and in places the canal bed
was cut into bedrock from 1 foot to 3 feet. The guard gate is located 1,300 feet
above the Great Falls Park Visitors Center. '

Holding 3331n

About 2,800 feet below the upper guard gates, a large holding basin was constructed.
It is roughly triangular in shape, covering approximately 2 acres, with the long axis
parallel to the canal. This basin provided for the turning and docking of the canal
boats and a large impound area providing water to the locks located below it. The
river side wall of this basin is constructed of stone of a size and manner similar to
that below the upper guard gate. The berm-side wall no longer exists, but it is
assumed it was constructed in a like manner. Water from the holding basin was




;e ¢

{ { M: 29-48
Form No. 10-300a
{Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR FOR NPS USE ONLY -
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

RECENED

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

DATE ENrEaE’di

CONTINUATION SHEET ' ITEM NUMBER 7 PAGE 2

channeled into the locks of the canal through a lower guard gate, and the excess was
returned to the river via a waste weir/spillway. This basin and its attendant waste
weir and guard gate are located approximately 1,500 feet below the Great Falls Visitor
Center.

Waste Weir/Spillway

In the river side of the basin wall there is a break in the masonry where the waste weir
was located. The exact configuration of this structure cannot be determined at this
time, but it may have been constructed of wood. Its purpose was to maintain a maximum
operatlng level for the water in the holding basin.

Lower Guard Gate

The lower guard gate, located at the southwest end of the holding basin enabled the
water in the locks below to be regulated., Hollow quoin stones of well dressed Seneca
sandstone are visible in the walls on either side, thus indicating the use of a swing-
type mitre gate. An extra 4~inch recess in the quoins accommodated two sliding wicket
gates in each of the swing gates. The guard gate channel was 14 feet in width, and there
was apparently extensive use of flat strap iron cramps in the coping and stones beneath
them in the channel walls.

Locks

Below the guard gates were the locks which were numbered in descending order, with
number I being at the upper end, adjacent to the holdlng basin, and number V being
located near the weir.

Lock I

From the lower guard gate the canal wall is constructed of native stone. Lock I is
approximately 100 yards below the guard gate and seems to have been 14 feet wide and
100 feet long, pocket to pocket.. Its lift capacity was 10 feet. The walls were
prubably a composite of ashlar dressed red Seneca sandstone face over a rubble interior.
The two pairsof gates were of a swing-type with sliding wicket gates. The upper lock
gates and quoin stone coping were 2 feet, 2 inches above the level of the coping of
the lower lock gates. The upper course is the only one currently in view and it con-—
sists of four stones with a recess of 8% inches deep to receive the mitre sill. There
was evidently little use of iron cramps in the lock walls, except in the gate pockets.
There are currently a few bulges in the lock walls, and there has been some repair to
the walls with brick, rubble, and cement in modern times. This feature is located
1,700 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.
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Lock fI

Lock II is 12 feet wide, 88 feet long between gate pockets and had a 1lift capacity of

15 feet. There were several types of stone used in the construction of this lock, with
free stone used in all of the gate pockets. Ashlar red sandstone was used on the river
side wall, except for a small section of rough cut nature stone. There are a large
number of stonecutters' marks found in the stones of this lock, particularly in the free

stone..

The lock gates were of the swing mitre type with butterfly wicket gates. There are
indications that the cut stone in the gate pockets were cramped, but all pockets have
since collapsed. About 30 feet of the upper end of the berm wall have collapsed below
the breast wall, as have about 16 feet below the lower gate pocket, on the river side.
This lock is located 1,800 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

Locks III, IV, and V

77  TLocks III, IV, and V were a riser, or stairstep, of locks, each belng immediately
adjacent to the other, and sharing the common gate between them. Lock III is 12 feet
wide, 111 feet long, and has a 1ift of 15 feet. Locks IV and V, however, were blasted
from the bedrock with black powder in hand-drilled holes. Lock III is unique in that
the lock bends 18 degrees within the lock itself., These locks are 2,100 feet below
the Great Falls Visitor Center.

Jetty
At the lower end of the gorge of Locks IV and V the canal returns to the Potomac River.

On the river side of this gorge, a stone jetty was built into the river to protect the
entrance/exit to the canal. Presently there are no known remnants of this jetty
remaining. '

ASSOCIATED FEATURES

Mill Slte

Just below the Great Falls Visitor Center and adjacent to the river 51de canal wall
are the foundations of an o0ld mill. Period maps refer to the existence of a grist
mill, while more recent maps refer to a saw mill. Ruins of masonry walls indicate
the water wheel pit was adjacent to the wall of the canal and that it was fed from
the canal by a wooden flume from some distance above the location. The remains of an
existing masonry weir which now feeds water to the complex seems to be of more recent
construction and probably is not original to the construction of the mill.
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Forge/Foundry Slte
Just below the mill site are the remains of footlngs and foundation for a forge/foundry.
Archeological evidence has revealed the function of this building through exc¢avation of
both artifacts and slag. There are also the remains of a cast iron pipe below the
foundation which seems to lead from the canal bank to the river bed. It is assumed
this would have enabled the use of a turbine as power necessary for a forge.

Matildaville
Initially it was planned for a small town of 40 acres to accompany the development of
the canal as a trade center and headquarters of the Canal Company. Lighthorse Harry
Lee, father of General Robert E. Lee,was the founder of this town. Due to the finan-
cial failure of the canal the town never fully developed and all that currently
remains are the ruins of a few structures.- It is known that there were additional
wooden structures, including, among others, warehouse and workmen's quarters, but no
remains of these are known.

.Dickey' s‘Inn‘(Myers Tavern)
This building survived for many years following the failure of the canal and
Matildayille. It was constructed of logs, squared and whitewashed, of two stories,
with five rooms upstairs and two downstairs, and a kitchen. During the Civil War the
inn was used for a Confederate Army headquarters. The building burned in 1942, and the
chimney still partially stands surrounded by a pile of rubble. The inn is located
1,500 feet below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

Spring House
The spring house, located near Dickey's Inn, served to keep perishables cool. The floor
of the spring house was approximately 30 inches below grade. All that currently remain
are the foundation walls, the spring inlet, and a small set of stairs.

Superintendent ‘s House
The Superintendent‘'s house was constructed in 1796 of stone and brick. It was two
stories with a front elevation of 25 feet and a depth of 35 feet. At present only the
foundation and some of the corner stones remain standing. It is located 1,700 feet
below the Great Falls Visitor Center.

General Appearance
The Patowmack Canal is currently in "ruin," in that much of the canal bed is filled
with debris and silt. . It is quite possible, however, that the canal prism is intact
throughout the major portion of its length. The lock gates are no longer in existence,
as the locks were dismantled in 1830, but significant archeological and documentary
evidence exists to accurately interpret their manner of construction.
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Associated Historic Artifacts

All historic artifacts and documents original to or historically associated with
the property described herein and in National Park Service ownership and control

are defined as components of this property for the National Register. Such
materials are listed and described in the park's museum catalog.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Patowmack Company was organized to construct a canal system making the Potomac River

navigable for trade from Georgetownto Harpers Ferry.. If the Potomac River could be made
navigable, it was a short land passage from Harpers Ferry to the Monongahela or
Youghiogheny Rivers and then to the Ohio River, which at that time was a principal route
to the west. Canals were to be built at Great -Falls, Little Falls, Seneca, Shenandoah,
and House Falls. Only at Little Falls and Great Falls were locks required. During this
period canals with locks were uncommon in the United States, and thus represented a
significant engineering achievement.

The Patowmack Canal at The Great Falls-of the Potomac was the largest of the five skirting
canals on the Potomac. To re-enter the river below The Great Falls, a channel had to be
blasted through solid rock. Holes were bored by hand into the rock and filled with
blasting powder, and fired. This constituted one of the first uses of explosives in an
American Engineering project. -

George Washington, early in his l1fe, reallzed the 1mportance of the Potomac River as a
route to the west. Before the Revolutlonary War he was active in soliciting the interest
of Virginia and Maryland legislators in a canal venture, and he was successful in securing
the passage of an act in Virginia in 1772 for improving the Potomac. Due largely to
Washington's influence, the legislators of Maryland and Virginia passed laws incorporating
the Patowmack Company in 1784;. Washington served as the Company's first president. Shares
in the Patowmack Company were sold to subscribers. Although the country was in a period
of financial stress, the stock was quickly taken with a large number of Alexandria
residents participating. The states of Maryland-and Virginia originally purchased 50
shares each, and by 1821 Virginia had 70 shares and Maryland held 220. These states
purchased almost half of the 701 shares of- the Patowmack Company, a sizable investment
during a period when states did not promote. extensive public works. The Patowmack
Company S venture was one of the first state financed 1nternal 1mprovements in the USA.

Work on the v._ana1 began in 1785 and was completed in 1802 under the direction of several
canal engineers, John Rumsey appears to have been the pr1nc1pa1 engineer. The Patowmack
Company was a financial failure; however, it-iIs significant for its early recognition of
the need for an effective means of transportation between the east and west, and the
developueini of canal building in the United States.

On August 15, 1826, the bankrupt Patowmack Canral Company dissolved and its charter and
its charter and official papers passed to the Chesapeake and Ohio Canal Company.
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The town of Matildaville was a speculative venture to parallel the development of the
Patowmack. Canal at The Great Falls. In a letter of February 13, 1789, to Thomas Jefferson
George Washington stated, "...I conceive that place [future town site] must become very
valuable... I cannot entertain a doubt of the establislment of a town in that place." The
estahlishment of the town was financially undertaken by General Henry ("Light Horse Harry"
Lee, who obtained a charter for the 40 acre townsite from the Virginia Assembly in 1790.

Lee and his business assocfates hoped that Matildaville would grow into an important
industrial center in which surplus water-from the canal could be used for power. With the
failure of the Patawmack Canal at The Great Falls, Matildaville lost its economic base and
cegsed to function as a community, never realizing the expectations of Lee and the other
investars.

The Patowmack Canal at The Great Falls survives' today as an example of the Patowmack
Company‘s.pioneering canal venture In the United States. Although it, and the various
structures assocfated with it, are in ruins, they still constitute significant remains

of early canal technology and represent commercial speculation by individuals and states
that markaed much of the nation’s growth.
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Manuscrigts:

The records of the Potomac Company, deposited at the
National Archives, are theimain source of manuscript material.
Unfortunately, the records are incomplete and the buik of those
available relate chiefly to finances. With only few exceptions,
however, the minutes of meetings of the Company presidents and
directors and meetings of stockholders have been preserved.

There was or: annual meeting of dircctors and stockholders held

in August, and many special meetings during the year. These
minutes provide practically all the information that is available
about construction activities, 1785 through 1828. Also useful

are some ictters sent and received by Company officials, reports
of the president and directors to the stockholders, other reports,
memdranda, lists, printed documents, and the like, classified in ‘
the Archives as Correspondence and Reports.

Internal evidence suggests that the Company superintendents
and engineers prepared detailed monthly and bi-annual reports.

Ey a rare coincidence, almost all of these reports are missing.

Printed primary sources:

Amzrican State Papers, Washington, D. C., 1834, Miscellaneous, II,
1809-1823.
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Fitzpatrick, John C., editor, The Writings cf Ceorge Washington,
Government Printing Office, 1931-1944 , 39 vols; The Diariee of
George Washirgton, Houghton Mifflin Company, New York, 1925,

4 vols. These two sources are the best for background informa-
tion on the organization of the Potomac Company and the first
four years of canal construction.

Hening, William Waller, The Statutes at Large; being a collection
of all the Laws of Virginia, Richmond, 1823.

Lear, Tobias, Lettera and Recollections of George Washington,
Doubleday, Paps and Company, New York, 1906.

Sparks, Jarel, The Writinge of George Washingion, Boston, 1835.

The Americc : Historical Review, XXVIII, No. 3 (April 1923) and
No. & (July 1923). This volume contains numerous letters of
Washington and cthers dealing with the Potomac project, from
the Minnesota Historical Society.

Specialized works:

A Treatise cf Imtermal Navigation, U. F. Doubleday, 1817.

Phillips, J., 4 General #istory cf Inland Navigation, Foreign
and Domestic, London, 1792.

Recuell De Planches, sur Lee Sciencea, Les Arte Libéraux, A Paris,
1767.

Vallance§, Charles, A Treatice on Inland Navigation, or, the art

of making Rivers navigable, of making canals in all soris of soils,
and of conastructing Locks and eluices, Dublin, 1763.

Encyclopedias:

Encuclopaedia Britannica, Edinburgh, 1771, II.

Harper's Encyclopaedia of United States History, VII.
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Newsnapers:

The Evening Star, Washington, D. C., May 13, 1893, W. S. Jacksoen,
"The potomac Canal." TIllustrations from photographs taken April

17, by Henry G. Wagner.

General works:

Bacon-Foster, Corra, "Carly Chapters in the Development of the

Potomac Route to the West," Recorde of the Columbia Historical

Society, Washington, D, C., 1912, XV. This is the best source

on the subject ,f the Potomac canals; numerous documents cf the
Potomac Compar are reproduced, especially minutes of meetings

and reports o presidents.

Becardman, Fo W., Jr., Canals, Henry Z. Walck, Inc., New York,
1959.

Bryan, Wilhelmus Bogart, A History of the National Capitail, The
Macmillan Company, New York, 1914, I.

Buehr, Walter, Through the Locke, Canals Today and Yesterday,
G. P. Putnam's Sons, New York, 1954.

De Moré, Eric, The Canals of England, The Arciritectural Press,
London, 1861.

"Diary of Mrs. William Thornton,' Records of the Columbic Historical
Society, Washington, D. C., X.

Gutheim, f}ederick, The Potomac, Rinehart and Company, Inc.,
New York, 1949.

Hadfield, Charles, Introducing Canals, Ernest Benn Limited,
London, 1955; The lanal Age, Frederick A. Praeger, New York,
1963,

Hulbert, Archer Butlcr, "The Great American Canals," Higtoric
KHighoays of America, The Arthur H. Clark Company, Clcveland, Ohio,
~ Xiii; Washirgton cnd the West, New York, 1905, Journal of 1784.
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Nelson, Thomas Forsythe, Waskington's Canal Around the Great
Falls of the Potomae, Washington, D. C., 1910.

Payne, Robert, The Canal Builders, the Story of Canal Ergineers
Through the Ages, The Macmillan Company, New York, 1959.

Pilkington, Rogez, How Boats Go Uphill, Abelard-Schuman, New York,
1959.

Rolt, L. T. C., Navigable Wateruays, Longmans, Creen and Co.,
London, 1969.

Scharf, Thoas J., History of Naryland, 1879, II.
Smith, Jo Anna, Fistory of the Creat Falls Canal cnd lLocks, ASCE
National lecting on Transportation Engineering, Washinzton, D. C.,

1969.

Taggard, Hugh T., "0ld Georgetown," Records of the Colunbia Historical
Soctety, 1908, XI.

Vernon-Harcourt, Leveson Francis, Rivers and Canals, Oxford, Clarcndon
Press, 1896, 2 vols.

Warden, D. B., Deseription of the Districi of Columbia, Paris, 1816.
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Graul Falls Park is tocatod at the intorsection of Va.
1932 (Coorgetown Pike) end Vo, 732 (Old Dominion
Drive) in Great Folls, Virginia, It is edminisiered by

the National Park Sarvice, U.S. Department of the

interior. Addross inquiries to the Superintendant,
Goorga Washington Memorial Parkway, Turkey
fiun Park, McLean, VA 22101; or to Great Falls
Park, 5200 O!d Dominion Drive, Great Falls, VA
22066. Telophene 703-759-2916.

As the Nation's principal consarvation-agoncy, the
Depertment of the Interior has rosponsibility for
most of our nationally owned public lands and na-

tural resources. This includes {ostering the wisest

use of our land and water resources, protecting our .
fish and wildlifa, proserving the environmaontal and

" culturo! vuluos of our natlonal parks ond historlcal

places, and providing-for the enjoymont of life

through outdoor roersation. The Department as-
snsces our onergy and mineral resources and works
to ossure that their deveiopment isin the best inter, < °
euts of ol our peoplo. The Dopartment also has e -

major rozponsibility for American Indian raserve.
tlon cummunities end for people who live in Island’

Tarritories under U.S. administration,
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Falls Por’c, but it’s really port of the Chesapenko &
Ohio Canal National Historical Perk. To got to the
Groat Falls Tavern Visitor Center, toke exit 15, the
first beltway exit across the river in Maryland.

HISTORICAL NOTES

The Indians rightly named the river Patowmack, or
trading place, The river was in constant harmony
with their way of life, providing food, water, and an
eansily accessible transportation notwork,

When the first Europeans settled in this aree, they,
too, saw the great river as a trading place. but one
of even grester dimensions, They had the tools with
which they could remove hazards and make the
river navigable In its entirety.

As a young man, George Washington surveyed the
Potomac River and envisioned it as a trade link with
the west—the lands beyond the Appalachians. He
wanted to tie tho productive farmiands of the Ohio
Velley, where he eventually owned thousands of
acres, with the morkets on the eastern seaboard.
He proposed a series of five canals thst would by-
pass the unnavigable stretches of the river. In 1784
the Patowmack Company was formed with Wash-
ington its first president,

Construction began the next year and was not com-
pleted until 1802, The cansl at Little Falls on the
Maryland side of the river just above Georgetown
and the one at Grest Falls took the longest time to
build because thoy had to be fitted with locks which
early American engineers had little experience in
designing, Skirting canals were dug further upriver
on tho Virginia side at Seneca Falls and at Harpers
Ferry. At other rough-water places on the river the
canal company simply dredged end cleared a path

‘right in the riverbed,

From Virginia the view of Great Fells is one of anduring besuty.
with decline ceme the town's demise os a trade
center. The town never reslized its original charter
size of 17.2 hecteres (43 acres), but it did have an
inn, a forge, a gristmill and other out-buildings.

Although Washington's hope of uniting east and
west by an inlond waterway was a practical ides, his
hopes for the canal system fell short of their full
dimensions, Drastic changes in the water level of
the Potomac River brought about by floods or
droughts would close the canals, But poor manage-
ment and a lock of operating cepital elso contrib-
uted to the Patowmack Company’s lack of success.
In 1828, the commercial rights to the Patowmack
Company were sold to the Chesapeake & Ohio Ca-
nal Company, which was organized to build and
operate a now canal on the Maryland side of the
river. This canal eventually linked Cumberland and
Georgetown in a continuous, closed-water system
unaffected by all but the most drastic flooding of
the Potomac River, By making the level.of water in
the canal constent, regardless of the river’s height,
the Chesapeake and Ohio Canol surmounted the
major problem of the old Patowmack Canal.
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The shifting of pressures Iin the earth and the cool-
Ing of certain sections of the earth's surface caused
an uplift, and the Appalachisn Mountains were
formod. After this upheaval, approximately 180 mil
lion years ago, rain and surface water flowed down
the mountains and through the Piedmont sections
toward the Atlentic Ocean. One of the rivers thus
formed was the Potomac.

A veriety of plants end animels live along the banks
of the river and in swamps and upland forests of the
park, Here ore found the pawpaw troos, whose ed-
ible fruit nourished Lewis and Clark in their journey
to the Pocific Ocean: the rare trailing arbutus,
whose dainty pink flower is like a treasure to all
who find it: and the beaver, nature’s own civil en-
ginaer, Hore, too, are the wood duck, the orb-weavo
spider, the muskrat, the broadwing hawk, the red
fox, the white-teiled deer, and the box turtle, which
travels no farther in a lifetime than humans do on
fool in a day. Teke your time and lock around;
you're bound to find other forms of plant and ani-
mai life here at Great Falls.
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Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
‘Fairfax County, Virginia

1L.CS Pheoto, NCR '

Locks # 3,4,5, looking away from
the riyer

Patowmack Canal at freat Falls

Falrfax County, Virginia

L.C.S. Photo

V%ey of watered portion of the canal above
Visitors Center :

Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
Fairfax County, Virginia

1.CS Photo, NCR

Dickey's Inn from ruins of

Matildayille

Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
Fairfax County, Virginia

Lock # 1
LCS Photo, NCR




TR
7 - L.\...-—. i
bl o el

P
i -
&

.
L

iy ST

¥
S ;...LW




;¥R
i

e
3

e

e

-\..P_" = ‘. ]
,'i r.i =i “m-’“z‘ -

ey




Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
Fairfax County, Virginia
Lock # 1

Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
Fairfax County, Virginia
Lock # 2

Patowmack Canal at Great Falls
Fairfax County, Virginia

Locks # 3,4,5, looking toward
the river
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